
SETTlLEMENTAGREEMENT 

THIS SEITLEMENT AGllEEMENT (the ..Agreement''} ts made and entered into by 
and between Aldine Independe11t School District ("Respond;mt") and the United States 
Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Office of Special Counsel for lmmigration..Refated 
Unfair Employmc'.nt Practices ("Office of Special CounsePt or 1'0SC,'). 

WHEREAS, on December l, 2015, the Office· of Spe,cial Counsel opened :an independent 
investigation. (DJ# 197"74~537) {the '~Investigation'') into whether Respondent engagedLin unfair 
documentary practices in violation of 8 U.S.C. § B24b(a)(6) .ofthe Immigration and Nationality· 
Act (the "Act"). · · 

WHEREAS, the Office of Spe.cial Counsel fou:nd; based upon its independ{;}nt 
investigation, that Respondent engaged in discriminatory documentary practices based on 
immigration status in violation of the Act beginning no .Jater than December 1, 2010, and 
continuing until at least Dece1t1ber l} 2015i by subjecting lawful permanent residents who 
presented a perrmme:nt resident card at the titne of initial hire to an unnecessary reverification of 
their work authorization. 

WHEREAS, Respondent understa11ds its obligation under·S U.S.C. § 1324bto treat all 
·· -·~-~·~·--~--~imitvidua:lireqmi:Ily;·"withoutmgru-d"'ttremzemJrtprtnYmtgrf}'ftoJr's!a:tus;·'"ornat1brie(l ·origfo) aurtng=~· 

the hiring, firing, and employment eligibimy veriffoation and re~vedfication processes. 

WHEREAS> the Offi1;e, of Special Counsel and! Respondent wish to resolve the 0SC 
Investigation without further delay or expense and hereby acknowledge that they are voluntarily 
entering into this Aveement 

NOW, THEREFORE, in conside:m1ion of the mutual promises set forth below, and to 
:foUy and finally resolve the OSC Investigation as of the date of this Agreement, it is agreed as 
follows: 

l. 	 Respondent shall pay a civil penalty to the United States Treasury in the total amountof 
one hm1dted and forty thousand dollars ($140,000), 

2. 	 Respondent shall pay the monies discussed in paragraph 1 via the FedWire electronic 
fund transfer system within ten (10) business days of l'e.ce.iving fund transfer instructions 
from OSC, On the day of payment, Respondent shall confirm via ewmaH to Richard 
Crespo at richatd.crespo@usdoj.gov that paymentwas made. 

3. 	 Beginning no later than January 17, 2017, and continuing until the end of the 2018~2019 
academic school year; Respondent shall conduct a school~based education program, 
ful'ther described :in Exhibit A, to educate participants on the rights and responsibilities of 
employers and employees under 8 U.S.C. § l324b, In connection whh the development 
and implementation ofthis education program: 
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A. 	 Respondent shall, within one (1) week of the effective date of this Agreement, 
advise the Office of Special Counsel in writing of the names, job titles 
business mailing address~s and daytime telephone numbe1's of Respondent 
offidals or employees designated by Respondent to devefop tb:e lesson plans 
t-o be used by Respondent officials and employees when conducting the 
education program ("1324b Working Group'"); 

B. 	 The Office of Special Counsel shall, within three (3) weeks, of the effective 
date of this Agreement and at a mutually acceptable date and time, provide the 
1324b Working Group with an lntcrn:et-based training on the Act's anti­
discrimination provision, together with written documents commonly used by 
the Office of Special Counsel when conducting edn.cational outreach 
presentations; and 

C. 	 Within three (3) we.eks of receiving the above-referenced training from the 
Office of Special Counsel; the· 1124b Worldng Group shall submit to the 
Offfo.e of Spedal Counsel for its approval the proposed les~on plans to be 
used by 'Respondent officials and. employees when conductrng the education 
program. The: 1324b Working Group shall incorporate any edits to the lesson 
plans offered by the Office ofSpecial Counsel. 

D, 	 Respondent shall pennit ripresentatives from the Offic(;) of the Special 
Gounsel to access RcBp>ondcnt' s premises and observe a.ny training or class 
provided pursuant to this .edu~ation program, provided that the Office .of 
Special Co~ns~l notify Responqe.nt in 'Writing of its .intent to do so at least 
seven (7) days in .advance ofits visit. 

4. 	 Within fourteen ( 14) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Respondent and the 
Office of Special Cou:nseI shall each designate> and identify in writing to the other, a 
point of contact {POC) to facilitate compliance with the terms of this Agreement and 
assist in the development and implementation of the education program referenced in 
Paragraph 3. 

5. 	 Respondent shaU not intimidate, threaten, coerce, ouetaliate against any person for his or 
her participation in the investigation conducted by the Office of Special Counsel or for 
the exercise of any right or privilege se~ured by 8 U.S,C. § 1324b, 

6, 	 Within fourteen (14) days of receiving the Office of Special Counsel <(If You Have The 
Right to Work'} poster (~'OSC Poster") in English and in Spanish frot:n the Office of 
Special Counsel, and for the duration of this Agreement, Respondent shall post the OSC 
Poster in the teacher lounge of every school that is part of the Ald.1:ne Independent School 
District. · ' 

7. 	 During the term of this Agreement, Respondent shall ensure that all individuals who have 
duties relating to the Form I-9 or employment eligibility vetification, including all 
employees who train, create policiesr or otherwise participate in employment eligibrnty 
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decisions enuman Resources Personnel'"), are hlpnssession ofthe most current version 
of the Form 1·9~ USCIS Employment Eligibility Vetification Handbook for Employers 
(M-274) ("Handbook"), a¥aHable at www.uscis,gov/l:-9Central, and the most current 
USCIS EfflVerify Manual (M ..775) ("Manual'')) available ai 
www,uscis,gov/USCIS!Verification/E-Verify/E~Veri:l)'.. Native_I)ocyments/manual~ 
ern12low..£omp,pdf. Copies of these documents and future revisions of the Fonn r..9, 
Handbook, and Manual can he obtained from the United States Citizenship and 
Immigration Services at wwv,r,uscis.gov. Costs for reproducing these documents for use 
by Human Resources Personnel will be borne by Respondent 

8. 	 Within sixty (60) days from the effective date of this Agreement, Respondent shall 
review and revise its written employment policies and training materials to: 

(a) 	 Prohibit (i) requesting employment eligibility vetification documents from 
any individual prior to making an offer of employment; (ii) discrimination 
on the basis of citizenship, immigration status or national origin in the 

· recruiting, hiring, ~nd :firing p.roc:ess; and (iii)· discrimination ·on the basis 
of citizenship, immigration status or natioi1al origin) duting the 
employment eligibility verification and re-ver'incation. process; 

(oJ·--~--r<:efer·-appTfoanfs'aiicfeTnpfoyees·-who-cornplaini formally or informally, ·~f. ·-·-·-·· ~-- ­

discrimination based on ,citizenship or i:mmigrati9n status in the hiring, 
firing, or employment eligibility verification and re-verification process 
inm1ediately to the Qffi.c;e of Special. Counsel by directing the affected 
individual to the Office ofSpecial Counsel's worker hotline a:ttd website, 
and advise the affected individual of his or her right to can the Office of 
Special Counsel)s hotUue or file a charge ofdiscrimi.nationwith the Office 
of Special Counset; and 

(c) 	 Prohibit any reprisal action against an employee for having opposed any 
empioymentpracticy made unlawful by 8 U.S.C. § 1324b, or for filing any 
charge, or participating in any lawful manner inany investigatio11 or action 
under 8 U.S.C. § 1324b; ' 

Upon completion of the review and revision process set outabove, Respondent shall 
transmit its proposed policies ood traini11g materials, including any redline revisions, to 
the Offi.co ofSpecial Counsel for review and apprnvaL 

9. 	 Except as provided in paragraph 8, throughout the term of this Agreement, Responderrt 
shall provide any proposed changes in its written employment policies and training 
materials reluting to the prohibition .of employment•related discrimination b~sed on 
citizenship, immigration status or national origin in recruitment. hiring; firin:g and 
employment eligibility verification processes to tlie Office ofSpecial Counsel for review 
and approval at least thirty (30) days prior to the proposed effective date of such l'evised 
policies or materials. 
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1i, 

12. 

Within sixJy (60) days -of the effective date of t1J.is Agreement) all Huma,n Resources 
Personnel shall join the Office of Special Counse.Ps email distribution list and attend a 
webinar training provided by the Office of Special Counsel on the anti ..discrimi..natioo 
requirements of 8 U.S.C. § 1324b~ and the employment eligibili~y verification and re-
verification processes, · 

(a) 	 The trainings will consist ofa webinar :at no cost to Respondent other than 
paying employees. their normal rate of pay during the training. 
Particip·ants shaU regrster for the ·webinar presentation through• a link that 
the Office of Special: Counsel wHI provide. 

(b) 	 AU employees will be paid ·their .normal rate of pay during the training, 
and the. training will occur during their nortnaHy scheduled wo.rkd1;1ys and 
work hours. 

. (c) During the term of thds Agreement. all new Human Resources Persom1el 
hfred by Respondent after the tminingdescribed in this paragraph.has been 
conducted, shall attend ah Office of Special Counsel Employer/HR 
webinar 'Within sixty (60) days .ofhire 01· p1•pm9tkm, Any Individuals who 
have not been so ttained withfo sixty (60) days of commencing duties 

-·--~,~urs1:tanrttrt1UFsutr=pt1:m1~nipirslm:It1'rrr·toe permtrrea:roconiJJlete Forms"r.: 
9, initiate E..Verify qµefies, or perfom1. any other tasks associated with the 
employment eligibility verification process. 

(d) 	 Respondent shall create a participant sign-in sheet for each training 
session conducted pttrsuant to this paragraph listing the individuals who 
attend the trainings described in this paragraph, in-eluding their foll name, 
title, sig_nature, and the date of the training, and send such records via, 
email to richard.crespo@usdoj.gov within ten (10) days of each training 
session. 

During the term of this Agreement, the Office of Special Counsel reserves the right to 
make reasonable inquiries of Respondent necessary to determine Respondent's 
compliance with this Agreement. As a part of such review, the Office of Special Counsel 
may require the submission of written reports ·Concerning compliance; an inspection of 
Respondents premises~ exatni:natkHis afwitnesses; and the review, produi;.;ti.orr or copying 
of such other documents and information that, in -the view of the Office of Special 
Co:unsi.:I~ are rvlevant to determining Respondent's complianoe. 

Bvery six months during the tenn of this Agreement, Respondent shall provide the Office 
of Special Counsel with (a) a frst of all individuals hited~ and (b} a list of all employees 
re~verified dtll'ing the preceding six months identified by name~· date of initial hire, 
citizenship/immigr41,tion status, type of document presented for reverification, and, if 
applicable date of reverification. Should the Offi.ce- of Special Counse] request the 
production of documents related to or generated in connection with Respondent's 
employment eligibility verification and re-verification processes for one or more of the 
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identified individuals or employees, Respondent win provide electronic copies of the 
completed Forni I-9~ including any attachments and other related documents requested by 
the Office of Special Counsel, with.in thirty (30) days of receipt of the Office of Special 
Counsel's request. 

13. 	 If the Office of Special Counsel has reason to believe that Respondent is in violation of 
any pt<Jvision of this Agteernent, the Office of Special Counsel may in its sole discretion 
notify Respondent of the purported violation without opening an· investigation under 8 
U:S.C. § 1324b, Respondent w±1l then be given thirty (30) days from the date it is 
notified by the Office of Special Counsel in which to cure the apparent violation to the 
satisfaction of the Offi9e of Special Counsel before Respondent is deemed by the Office 
of Special Counsel to be in violation ofthis Agreement. 

14. 	 Th.iis Agre.ement does not affect the respective rights under 8 U.S.C. § 1324b of an 
individual to file a cfo1rge alleging an unfair im.migration~·refoted employment practice 
against Respondent with the Office of Special Counsel, or the Office of Si(Je.cial 
Counsel's authority to investigate a cl1arge, initiate an independent investigation, and/or 
file a complaint with the Office ofthe ChiefAdministrafi'Ve Hearing Officer. 

15. The provisions of paragraph 1 notwithstanding; the Office of Special Counsel shall not 
i·- .~.... ·--~~~-·--~-" seel<fforr1Kesp6ifdent·any auai"fional-civil penalty for· the~ u11rmr. aocumentary" practices. ... · .... 

that are the subJect of the OSC Investigation through the dat~ this Agreement is signed by 
all pai'ties. 

16. 	 Any action to enforce this Agreement may be brought in the United States District Court 
of the Southem District of Texas, Houston Divisiani or any other court of competent 
jurisdiction. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver of 
sovereign immunity on the part of the Office of Special Counsel. 

17. 	 Should any provision: o.f this Agreement be declared or determined by any court to be 
illegal or hwalid, the validity of the remaining parts, tenns. or provisions shall not be 
affected thereby and s!-'!id illegal or invalid part, term or pmvisi,on sha[J be deemed not to 
be a part of this Agreement. Respondent .and tbe Office of Special. Counsel shall not, 
individually Qr in combi:nation with another, seekto have any court declare or determine 
that any provision of this Agreement invalid, 

18. 	 The Offi.ce of Speoial Counsel aitd Respondent shall bear their awn costs., attorneys, fees 
and otlwr expenses incurred in this action. 

19. 	 This Agree111ent may be executed in multiple cou11terpa:rts, each of which together shall 
be considered an original but aU of which shall constitute one agreement. The parties 
shall be bound by facsinrile signatures. 

20. 	 This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the Respondent and the Office of 
Special Counsel and fully supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings 
between the parti.es pertaining to the subject matter herein. 
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21. 	 The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date on which it is executed by the last 
party. 

Aldine Independent School District 

By: !fn~{JcPfk 
Dated: It- /5~.,/~ 

~l Counsel 1 1 ( ', 


,I\ lf ~ . . ~ ~(7 I,.._
tJ, \, 	 .~ 
t 

j 

\ 

. :-~,k,10 Dated: !l- JS--l<e 
Dr. Wanda Bamberg 

Superintendent 


Office of Special Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfair Employment Practices 

Dated: II ~ o2 :I.. - ;J., OIi 

C. Sebastian Aloot 

Special Litigation Counsel 


Richard Crespo 

Trial Attorney 


M. Kaye DeWalt, Esq. 

By: 

Alberto Ruisanchez 
Deputy Special Counsel 



EXHH.DT A 

Education Program Descriptions/Activities 

The Aldine Independent School District ('~Respondenf') will ('Jevelop and conduct a school~ 
based education program C1Education Program") regarding the anti-discrimination requirements 
of the Immigration and Nationality Act eINA") as set forth in Paragraph 3: of the accompanying 
Settlement Agreement. The Education Program will be based on lesson plans developed by 
Respondent in consultation with and with the approval ofthe Office ofSpecial Counsel. 
Respondent shall modify the lesson plans in light ·Of the three types of audiences:· (1) adult 
pmticipants in Respondent's Parent Literacy/English Second Language (ESL) classes; (2) 
twelfth-grade students enrolled in Respondent's high scho()1-1evel U.S. Government or Career 
and Technology .Education courses throughout the District; and (3) Respondent employees. 

1. Education Progran1 Presentations to Intended Audiences 

A. Respondent's Parent Literacy I E,SL Participants 

Respondent provides at several of its schools and campuses Parent Literacy/ESL 
·--· -. -· ~··~~· · ·-·· · 	 courses-;-whiefroffer=free-basie-education-for·parents·Tmd~othentdults~whuse"domimmr ­

language is not English. Respondent will incorporate at least one 40-50 minute 
language~appropriate Education Program presentation} taught by a certified bilingual 
educator and/or bilingui:Jl director ofhuman resourcesi into each Parent Literacy/ESL 
course provided by Respondent between January2017 and September 2019, 

B. Respondent's High School Govem11;11.mt/CTE Students 

As part of its regular curriculum, Respondent provides students at the twelve-grade 
level classes in U.S. Govermnent and courses in Cf!reer and Technology Education 
("CTE"), For each academic semester between January 2017 and September 2019, 
Respondent will incorporate at least one 40~50 ITfrnute Education Program 
presentation into all twelfth-grade level U.S. Government classes and CTE courses. 

C. Respondent's Employees 

Respondent routinely conducts meetings with its officials, staff support members, 
professional staff, and teachers. Those meetings include Horizontal Meetings for 
school principals, curriculum program directors, and other district administrators; 
Roundtable Discussions for department heacls; and school~bas.ed Faculty/Staff · 
Meetings. At least once per academic year froi112017~2019, Respondent shall 

. provide an Education Program presentation, which lasts at least 45 minutes, at at least 
one Horizontal Meeting, one Roundtable Discussion, and one FacultyuStaff meeting 
at a .schoo:t which will host another Education Program presentation during the 
relevant academic year. 
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2. Respond,ent Responsibilities for and Control Over Presentatio:ns 

AU presentations in connection with this Education Program will be scheduled~ conducted, 
supervised, and run by Respondent~ except that at the requestof Respondent and subject to the 
availability of OSC, OSC may partfcipate in or conduct one or more presentations e,ther in­
person or through webinar presentations in; English or, as appropriate, in Spanish. 

3. Education Program Presentation Content 

Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties, aU presentations 'in connection with the 
Education Program will be: (1) conducted by or under the direction ofa Respondent official or 
employee who bas previously received "train-the-trainer" training provided by OSC on the 
fNA 's, anti~discrimination requirements, (2) based on a lesson plan developed by Respondent and 
approved by OSC for that audience> and (3) conducted in a language .appropriate for the intended 
audience, . 

4, Education Program Presentation Evahlations 

---- a~Resp2n§ent_shall.Myelo.P~ in CO!l,~Ultafum wifuOSC,A-~urveyfotM.d1..Qftfillldl!QlfilQn __ ~-~-- _,,,,_ 
Program's three intended audiences to obtain participantst reactions, assessments, comments and 
recommendations regarding the Education Program. The survey shall be distributed to 
participants at the conclusion. of each Education Program presentation, with a request that each 
partl:cipant complete the survey. Within 21 days of the end. of each academic semester, a 
summary report containing and analyzing the survey responses completed during the 
immediately preceding semester, tog.ether with any assess1nents and recommendations provided 
by Respondent officials and employees over the same period, shall be~ubmitted via email to th.e 
OSC POC designated under Paragraph 4 ofthe accompanying Settlement Agreement. 

5, OSC Training of .Respondent Officials a.nd Persoutu:l Responsible for Conducting or 
Supervising Education Program· Presentations 

Within 45 days of the effective date of the accompanying Settlement Agreement~ all curriculum 
program d1rectors, human resources directors, department heads and principals ofschoolswhlch 
will host an .Education Program presentation: will attend It1tcrnet-base:d "train-the-trainer'' 
webinars provided by OSC and, as appropriate, R:espondent on the em{)loyment-related 
requirements of the JNA's antiwdiscrimination provisfa:m and the purpose and elements of the 
Education Program. OSC shall offer at least four {4) such ~-train~the--traineru webinars. For each 
webinar, Respondent willcompile attendance records of the individtmls attending the webinat, 
and will submit such records to the OSC POC witl1in 14 days of the webinfil'. 

6. Education Program Modificadons and Enfrnnccmc:nts 

Respondent wiH assess the effectiveness of the Education Program based on, among other things, 
its experience ln conducting the program and smvey results. Within 3'0 days of the end of each 
academic semester, Respondent will submit any proposed adjus.tments or enhancements, together 
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with the reasons supporting the adjustments or enhancem.ents, to OSC, through the OSC POC 
designated under Paragraph 4 of the accompanying Settlement Agreement~ for review and 
approval. 

7. Certification of Education Program Presentation 

Upon completion of each Education Program presentation conducted by Respondent in 
c0IU1ection with the Program, the pre.senter shall complete a Certification ofEducation Program 
Presentation on INA, a copy of whfoh ls appended to the accompany Settlement Agreement as 
Exhibit B~ and submit the completed form within three (3) business days to Dr. Selina Chapa, 
Assistant Superintendent ofHuman Resources, Within fourteen {14).days of:the end ofeach 
academic semester, Respondent shall submit a copy of each Certification subn1itted during the 
immediately preceding academic semester to, the ()SC POC designated under Paragraph 4 of the 
accompanying Settlement Agreement. 

8. Printing/Translation ofEducation Program Materials 

Respond,ent shall be responsible for and bear the cost of: {l) reproducing and distributing al1 
written course materials and handouts used in connection with any Education Program 

~----.,·-~~pre~_e~~t~~!()_~!-.!ll1eQJ!~~nsl!l-~!I!g~.!~·the ext_~Et ~~9-~_sary ;;t_n.;~L~ppr_()]I!t1~ ~~is,h materials. ~n~_ _------.-----~---··-­
handouts into Vietnan:iese·. 

9. Respondent's CouunuHity Partnerships 

Respondent maintains active partnerships with a number ofcommunity organi;;,mtions, including 
Aldine Coordit1atingCommitte,e (ACC),Bonding Agafa1st Diversity, Inc. (Bonding), East Aldine 
Management District, and Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (NCI). At least once a year during the 
tenn of the Agreement, Respondent shall infonn each of the identified partners of the purpose 
and status of Respondent's efforts to educate students, parents, andstaff on the 
antidiscrimination provisions of the Imrnigl'ation and Nationality Act. As part of each annual 
briefing, Respondent shall provide OSC's aeontact infonnatj,on and, ifre.quested by a partner, 
shall share with the partner any educational materials· distributed as part ofRespondent's 
Education Program. 



-------------

EXHIBITB 

Certificatio112f.EJ.iucation Presentation on INA 

1hereby certify that on this_ d·ay of___~__in the year -~that I 

conducted an educational program on the ,lnfi-discrimination provisions of the 

Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) at the following locatfon: 

for the following persons: [indicate-----~- ----­
whether student, adult education or employee]. 

There were approximately __ persons who attended this presentation. 

Signature and Date 
--~-,,...,.._7--,...-~---- --------------­

Print Name and Title 




